
 

 
 

HOUSING MANAGEMENT ADVISORY BOARD 
 

 
To:  T. Edwardes (Chair), T. Riley (Vice-Chair), A. Davis, D. Wright, Councillors Brennan, 

Radford and Seaton (For attention) 
 

All other members of the Council 
(For information) 

 
You are requested to attend the meeting of the Housing Management Advisory Board to 
be held in Virtual Meeting - Zoom on Wednesday, 11th November 2020 at 4.30 pm for the 
following business. 
 

 
 
Chief Executive 
 
Southfields 
Loughborough 
 
3rd November 2020 
 

AGENDA 
 

1.   APOLOGIES 
 

 

2.   MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING 
 

4 - 6 

 To confirm as a correct record the minutes of the previous meeting* held on 9th 
September 2020. 
 
*Meetings of the Board are public meetings and as virtual meetings they therefore 
need to be livestreamed.  In error, the previous meeting on 9th September 2020 
was not livestreamed and will therefore need to be considered as an informal 
meeting. 

 
3.   CHAIR AND VICE-CHAIR OF BOARD 2020/21 COUNCIL YEAR 

 
 

 To confirm at this formal meeting the following decision made by the Board at its 
informal meeting on 9th September 2020: 
 
1. that Mrs T. Edwardes be elected as Chair of the Board for the 2020/21 

Public Document Pack

Page 1



 

Council year;  
  
2. that Ms T. Riley be elected as Vice-chair of the Board for the 2020/21 Council 

year.  
 

4.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 

 

 All members will make a declaration at each meeting if they have an interest in any 
item of business on the agenda which would affect them more than tenants or 
residents of the ward(s) affected generally. 

 
5.   UPDATE ON ASB POLICY 

 
7 - 24 

 A report of the Head of Landlord Services. 
 

6.   UPDATE ON VOIDS 
 

25 - 36 

 A report of the Head of Landlord Services. 
 

7.   DISABLED ADAPTATIONS 
 

37 - 50 

 A report of the Head of Landlord Services.  Annual Report. 
 

8.   HRA REVENUE AND CAPITAL OUTTURN (2019/20) (UPDATE ON 
HRA) 
 

51 - 55 

 A report of the Head of Financial Services.  Annual Report. 
 

9.   PRIORITIES FOR NEXT FINANCIAL YEAR 
 

 

 A report of the Head of Landlord Services. Annual Report.  In 2020, this will be a 
brief, verbal report. 

 
10.   QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE BOARD 

 
 

 In accordance with the Board’s decision of 22nd March 2017, members of the 
Board were asked in advance of this agenda being published whether they had 
any questions on matters within the remit of the Board that they wished to ask, for 
response at this meeting.  
  
On this occasion, no questions were submitted. 

 
11.   WORK PROGRAMME AND MEETING DATES 2020/21 COUNCIL 

YEAR 
 

56 - 59 

 A report of the Head of Landlord Services to enable the Board to review and agree 
its Work Programme, together with meeting dates for the remainder of the 2020/21 
Council year. 

 

PERFORMANCE INFORMATION 
 
To enable the Board to ask questions, if any, on the performance information pack sent 

Page 2



 

out with the agenda for this meeting. 
 
To be considered following the close of the formal meeting, if required. 
 
 
 

Page 3



 

 

1 
 

Housing Management Advisory Board - 9th 
September 2020 

Published – 22nd September 2020 

 

HOUSING MANAGEMENT ADVISORY BOARD 
9TH SEPTEMBER 2020 

 
PRESENT: Councillors Radford, Seaton and Brennan 

 Board Members Edwards, Riley and Davis 
 
 

 Head of Landlord Services 

 Democratic Services Officer (NA) 

 
APOLOGIES: D. Wright 

 
 
 

1. ELECTION OF CHAIR AND VICE CHAIR FOR 2020/21  
 

The Board was asked for nominations for a Chair and Vice-chair for the Council year 
2020/21. Nominations were received and a vote was taken. 

 

RESOLVED 
 
1.       that Mrs T. Edwardes be elected as Chair of the Board for the 2020/21 Council 
year; 
 
2.       that Ms T. Riley be elected as Vice-chair of the Board for the 2020/21 Council 
year. 
 

2. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING  
 
The minutes of the meeting of the Board held on 15th January 2020 were confirmed as 
an accurate record. 
 

3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
No declarations of interest were made. 
 

4. LANDLORD SERVICES STATUS UPDATE  
 
A report of the Head of Landlord Services was presented to the Board detailing the 
work of the Service since the last meeting, particularly making reference to the 
communication and work with tenants. 
 
The Board was advised that Services were largely restored, but being delivered in 
different ways to, where possible, reduce face to face contact with tenants, and  
 

(i) Since the 4th August non-urgent repairs had recommenced and the team were 
tackling the backlog which had built up over lockdown 

Page 4

Agenda Item 2



 

 

2 
 

Housing Management Advisory Board - 9th 
September 2020 

Published – 22nd September 2020 

 

(ii) Priority visits were being carried out to tenants, but generally communication 
was via phone or email where possible. It was envisaged that this method 
would continue moving forward. 

(iii) There were planned changes to communal lounges in sheltered 
accommodation to reflect the new rules around cleaning and making the 
areas Covid secure. 

(iv) Tenant walkabouts had not yet recommenced, but the team were looking at 
options to engage with tenants going forward. 

 
Actions 
 

1. The Head of Landlord Services to send out information to the Board about the 
Council’s Lifeline Service. 

2. The Democratic Services Officer to liaise with the Communications Team about 
providing publicity information to the Board in different formats. 

3. That an update on the Council’s Sheltered Housing Review be provided to the 
Board at its next meeting. 

 
5. QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE BOARD  

 
In accordance with the Board’s decision at its meeting on 22nd March 2017 (HMAB 
Minute 24.1), members of the Board had been asked in advance of the agenda being 
published whether they had any questions on matters within the remint of the Board 
that they wished to ask, for response at this meeting.  
 
On this occasion no questions had been submitted. 
 

6. WORK PROGRAMME  
 
The Board received a report of the Head of Landlord Services to enable the Board to 
agree its Work Programme (item 07 on the agenda).  
 
Members of the Board could identify matters that they considered required looking at 
over the next few meetings of the Board, including any already listed on the Work 
Programme but not yet scheduled. Officers present could provide advice as to 
whether items might be appropriately considered at the time proposed. 
 
RESOLVED  
 

1. That the following items be added to the Board’s work programme: 
 

(i) That information on fly tipping in communal areas be provided to the Board – 
January 2021 

(ii) An update be provided on the HRA Revenue Account – November 2020 
(iii) The performance pack to be reintroduced for the next meeting in November. 
(iv) The Tenancy Policy and Tenancy Agreement to be scheduled for January 

2021. 
(v) The Pets Policy to be scheduled for January 2021. 

 

Page 5



 

 

3 
 

Housing Management Advisory Board - 9th 
September 2020 

Published – 22nd September 2020 

 

2. that the Board’s Work Programme be updated to reflect all decisions made above 
and earlier in the meeting. 
 
Reasons  
 
1. so that it can be considered by the Board. 
 
2. To ensure that the information in the Work Programme is up to date. 
 
 
NOTES: 
 
1. No reference may be made to these minutes at the next Council meeting unless 

notice to that effect is given to the Democratic Services Manager by five members 
of the Council by noon on the fifth working day following publication of these 
minutes. 
 

2. These minutes are subject to confirmation as a correct record at the next meeting 
of the Housing Management Advisory Board. 

 

Page 6



HOUSING MANAGEMENT ADVISORY BOARD – 11TH NOVEMBER 2020  
 

Report of the Head of Landlord Services 
 

ITEM 5   CORPORATE ANTI SOCIAL BEHAVIOUR AND HATE INCIDENT 
POLICY 2020-2024 

 
Purpose of Report 
 
To provide an opportunity for the board to comment on a draft Corporate Anti-Social 
Behaviour and Hate Incident Policy 2020-2024 prior to its likely progression to Cabinet 
for approval.  
 
Recommendation 
 
That the board comment on the draft policy at Appendix 1.  
 
Background 
 
A number of services across the Council deliver activities to prevent and manage 
(ASB); including: Community Safety, Landlord Services, Street Management, 
Environmental Protection, Planning Enforcement, Private Sector Housing, and 
Cleansing and Open Spaces. A review of the Council’s ASB services has recently 
been concluded.  As a result there will be closer working across teams.   
       
The Council’s existing ASB specific policy relates solely to delivery of the Council’s 
Landlord function.  Whilst minor amendments have been made over the years, the 
policy has not been significantly updated since the management of the Council’s 
housing stock returned to the Council in 2012.  Given the range of services involved 
in preventing and managing ASB it is desirable to introduce a new policy with a broader 
scope setting out, on a corporate basis, the Council’s responsibilities around ASB and 
hate incidents, and bringing ASB teams together under a clear policy framework for 
the delivery of services in this respect.  The policy reflects best practice principles.  
 
Should it be approved by Cabinet, the new corporate policy will support the use of the 
full range of tools and powers available under the Anti-Social behaviour Crime and 
Policing Act 2014, and compliance with the statutory requirement under the Act for 
local authorities to publish a community trigger process. The trigger is a mechanism 
for victims of persistent anti-social behaviour to request that relevant bodies undertake 
a case review.  
 
The policy supports compliance with the Housing Act 1996 which provides a duty on 
local authority landlords to prepare a policy and summary policy in relation to ASB, 
along with a published statement.  This requirement is further reflected in the Homes 
and Communities Agency (2012) Neighbourhood and Community Standard which 
sets out that registered providers of social housing will publish a policy on how they 
work with relevant partners to prevent and tackle anti-social behaviour (ASB) in areas 
where they own properties. 
 

Page 7

Agenda Item 5



The policy will positively contribute toward the effective management of ASB and hate 
incidents, and consequently compliance with the Council’s responsibilities under 
Section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act (1998) to undertake reasonable action to 
improve community safety in the Borough.       
 
Officer to contact:   Peter Oliver 
     Head of Landlord Services  

01509 634 666 
Peter.oliver@charnwood.gov.uk 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 8



Appendix 1  

 

 

 

 

 

Charnwood Borough Council 
Corporate Anti-Social Behaviour  

and Hate Incident Policy  
2020-2024 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Version 3.0 DRAFT 
October 2020 
Next review date: April 2024  

 

Page 9



Introduction 
 
Charnwood Borough Council recognises that residents are entitled to live in a quiet 
and peaceful environment free from anti-social behaviour (ASB) and hate incidents. 
For the vast majority of residents, ASB is not an issue.  However, where it does 
occur, ASB can have a devastating impact on the quality of life for residents if not 
dealt with. 
 
Whilst the Council aims to resolve ASB through informal action, the safety of 
residents is taken very seriously, and the Council will tackle anti-social behaviour 
effectively, using court proceedings where it is appropriate to do so to protect our 
residents. 
 
The Anti-Social Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014 introduced new powers to 
tackle ASB and provide better protection for victims and communities.  This included 
faster routes to gaining possession of a property where serious ASB has occurred, 
and extended the use of civil injunction to minors.      

 
This Policy will ensure that the full range of legal remedies is available to the Council 
when tackling ASB, and will place victims and communities at the heart of its 
response.  This approach is in line with the intention of the legislation.   
 
In managing ASB and hate-related incidents, a firm but fair, transparent and 
consistent approach will be adopted.  The needs and circumstances of vulnerable 
residents and perpetrators will be taken into account and, where appropriate 
referrals for support may be made.   

1.  Executive Summary   
 
Charnwood Borough Council has the highest population of any district in 
Leicestershire outside of the City of Leicester, and is estimated to be 180,000.  
 
Loughborough is a university town, and therefore, has a high student population. The 
Council works in partnership with the University to deal with incidents of anti-social 
behaviour and nuisance involving students.  
 
The Council owns and manages approximately 5,700 rented homes, 310 leasehold 
flats and 21 leased shops, and has a responsibility to investigate anti-social 
behaviour, and enforce conditions of tenancy by all legal means possible. 
 
The Council’s Corporate Strategy 2020-24 incorporates three themes; one of which 
is “Healthy Communities”. The Strategy states that: 
 
We will continue to work with partners to make our towns and villages safer places to 
live, work and visit. We will support our communities by delivering a range of 
services which not only help residents, but also empower them to make a positive 
difference in their local areas. Community cohesion will remain a priority. We want 
healthy and happy residents and therefore we are committed to providing high-
quality leisure facilities and sports activities for people and offer services to improve 

Page 10



wellbeing, either directly or with our partners. We are passionate about improving 
housing in the social and private sector and helping those in need of 
accommodation. We will continue to invest in our council homes and work with 
developers and the privately-rented sector to ensure high-quality homes are 
available to residents. 
 
The Council works in partnership with both statutory and non-statutory agencies in 
order to resolve ASB and to ensure that both victims and perpetrators receive the 
relevant support. 
 
The definition of ASB contained in the Anti-Social Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 
2014 is used by this policy as the fundamental basis for defining unacceptable 
behaviour.  ASB can cause distress and can affect the quality of life for residents.  
This Policy outlines the Council’s approach to taking effective action both to prevent 
and tackle ASB. 
 
The Council has a duty of care to victims of crime and ASB and is required to meet 
regulatory and legislative guidance.  

2.  Scope and purpose of this document 
 
This document sets out the Council’s responsibilities and how it deals with ASB. 
 
This document does not say how the Council will deal with ASB on a day-to-day 
basis.  This is explained in the following Policies (and any accompanying 
Procedures) which should be read alongside this document. 
 

 Charnwood Community Safety Partnership Plan 2020-23 

 Charnwood Borough Council Corporate Enforcement Policy 

 Regulatory Services Enforcement Policy 

3.  What is Anti-Social Behaviour? 
 
The Anti-Social Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014, defines ASB as: 
 
 (a) conduct that has caused, or is likely to cause, harassment, alarm or  
                     distress to any person; 

 
 (b) conduct capable of causing nuisance or annoyance to a person in  
  relation to that person’s occupation of residential premises, or 
 
 (c) conduct capable of causing housing-related nuisance or annoyance to 
  any person. 
 
ASB can affect different people and communities in different ways.  Actions that may 
seriously distress one individual or community may not affect or bother another 
individual or community at all. Incidents of ASB will, therefore, be considered and 
dealt with on a case-by-case basis.   

Page 11



 
Types of anti-social behaviour are wide ranging and can take many forms.  
Examples include (but are not limited to): 
 

 Noise (such as loud televisions and music, persistent, unnecessary or 

excessive noise, shouting or yelling, frequent loud parties, dogs persistently 

barking) 

 Rowdy and inconsiderate behaviour 

 Harassment 

 Verbal or written abuse  

 Threats or aggressive behaviour 

 Vandalism 

 Drug-related nuisance   

 Dog fouling 

 Keeping and failing to control an aggressive dog 

 Dumping rubbish and littering 

 
Abusive language and the use of or threatened use of violence against any Council 
officers, councillors or agents also falls within the definition of ASB. 
 
Not all reports of noise can be deemed to be ASB.  Those noises that arise out of the 
ordinary and reasonable use of a property are neither breaches of tenancy nor likely 
to constitute a statutory nuisance.  They therefore cannot be subject to enforcement 
action, unless they are specifically precluded by the terms of the tenancy agreement 
or lease or the noise is considered unreasonable for other reasons.   
 
Noise measuring equipment can be used to establish a pattern of behaviour and to 
illustrate the level of intrusion being experienced.  Examples of noise that are 
unlikely to fall within the definition of ASB may include (but are not limited to): 
 

 Footsteps 

 General talking  

 Moving furniture, banging doors, and running up and down stairs 

 DIY and car repairs unless they are taking place at unsocial hours (e.g. late at 

night or early hours)  

 Toilets flushing  

 Using a washing machine or vacuum cleaner 

 Crying babies 

 Children playing 

 
Cooking odours may not fall in to the definition of ASB.  It may not be 
reasonable/possible to take enforcement action against children playing ball games 
unless the children are engaged in behaviour including (but not limited to), verbal 
abuse, criminal damage, damage to Council landscaping or / property or more 
serious nuisance.    
 

Page 12



All complainants have a responsibility not to make malicious complaints about their 
neighbours, visitors or anyone engaged in lawful activity around their property.  
The Council takes malicious complaining very seriously and will usually take 
appropriate and proportionate action against anyone found to be doing so. 
 
The Council defines a victim of ASB as follows: 
 
The particular person who (in the opinion of the Council’s officer) seems to have 
been affected, or principally affected, by the perpetrator’s anti-social behaviour. 
 
The Council defines a repeat victim of ASB as follows: 
 
A person is a repeat victim if, within the last six months - They (as an individual) 
have complained to the Council, Police or a Registered Housing Provider (social 
landlord) about three separate incidents of ASB within the Charnwood area. 

4.  Definition of Hate Related Incidents  
 
The Council defines a hate incident as any non-crime incident which is perceived by 
the victim or any other person, to be motivated by hostility or prejudice on the 
grounds of:  

 race 
 religion 
 sexual orientation 
 disability 
 transgender identity 
 any other perceived difference 

An incident or / offence may be physical, verbal or written and can take many forms 
including:  
 

 Physical attack, such as, physical assault, damage to property, offensive 
graffiti  

 Threat of attack including offensive letters, abusive or obscene calls or texts 

 Verbal abuse or insults  

 Offensive leaflets and posters, hate mail, abusive gestures, or dumping of 
rubbish outside homes  

 Harassment, bullying and victimisation 
 
 
5.  The Council’s ASB responsibilities 
 
The Council has a wide range of responsibilities to tackle ASB, including: 
 

 The Council’s role as part of the Community Safety Partnership 
 

Under the Crime and Disorder Act 1998, the Council must work with the 
Police and other agencies to reduce crime and anti-social behaviour in 

Page 13



Charnwood. The Community Safety Partnership seeks to identify and 
prioritise the community safety issues that affect our communities, and has a 
duty to formulate and implement a strategy to prevent crime and disorder.  
 
The Council will investigate ASB and hate-related incidents. 
 

 The Council’s role in protecting the environment 
 

The Council has a range of responsibilities to deal with environmental ASB 
including noise, dog control, graffiti, litter, dumped rubbish, abandoned 
vehicles, noise, accumulations, bonfires, dust, smoke, odour, light, house and 
vehicle alarms, poor state of premises and kept animals (this list is not 
exhaustive). These responsibilities arise from a number of Acts and local 
byelaws, but in particular from the Environmental Protection Act 1990 and the 
Anti-Social Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014.   

 

 The Council as a social landlord 
 

As a landlord, the Council has a duty under the Anti-Social Behaviour Act 
2003 to have a published statement of policy and procedures in relation to 
ASB.  
 
Under its Conditions of Tenancy, the Council manages ASB and hate related 
incidents where the complainant/victim or perpetrator is a tenant or 
Leaseholder of Charnwood Borough Council and/or where the Council’s 
housing management functions are affected by the behaviour. The Council’s 
landlord duties and powers are different from, and usually act in addition to, 
the duties and powers to take action against those causing ASB under the 
Anti-Social Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014. 

 

 The Council’s role as a local Planning Authority 

The Council manages high hedge complaints under the 2003 Anti-Social 
Behaviour Act.  The law requires that people take all reasonable steps to try 
to settle their high hedge dispute for themselves before making a complaint.  
The Council will determine whether, in the words of the legislation, the hedge 
is adversely affecting the reasonable enjoyment of the complainant’s property 
and find a balance between the competing interests of the complaint and the 
hedge owner, as well as the interests of the wider community. 
The Council has legal powers available to control the tidiness/appearance of 
land and buildings, but this would usually be a last resort after attempting to 
reach a resolution with the landowner first.  If a resolution still cannot be 
achieved the Council may take enforcement action through the planning 
process. The Council can serve an Untidy Site Notice (also known as a 
Section 215 notice) on the owner or occupier when the poor condition and 
appearance of the building or land have a detrimental effect on the 
surrounding area or neighbourhood. 

 
Inter-agency relationships and a joined up approach are critical to the successful 
delivery of ASB services.  The Council works in partnership with other agencies 

Page 14



including (but not limited to) Leicestershire Police, other local authorities, Social 
Services, mental health teams and other areas of the National Health Service, and a 
range of non-statutory services where necessary.  
 
 
   6.  The Council’s objectives   
 
The Council will put victims and communities at the heart of its response to dealing 
with ASB and hate related incidents, and will support residents to live peacefully in 
their homes without unreasonable disturbance from ASB.  This will be achieved by:   
 

 Playing a full part as a key member of the Charnwood Community Safety 
Partnership. 

 

 Participating in relevant strategic or preventative initiatives. 
 

 Adopting a multi-agency approach and working with partner agencies such as 
the Police, Probation, Social Services and Youth Services. 

 

 Discouraging ASB through preventative measures including partnership 
working, CCTV, and door entry systems (for Council tenants only), and using 
a range of early intervention tools and techniques to prevent ASB from 
escalating and to resolve cases quickly. 
 

 Explaining reasons should the Council choose to take no action, and advise 
on self-help or other alternative courses of action whenever it is possible and 
appropriate to do this. 
 

 Using any of the tools and powers available to the Council under the law and 
Council Policy, according to officers’ professional judgement. 
 

 Referring cases to a mediation service where appropriate. 
 

 Monitoring complaints around the services that the Council provides.  These 
will be reviewed, and the Council will use feedback to contribute to the 
process of continual learning. 
 

 Working with residents, partner agencies, elected members and the 
Community Safety Partnership to identify ASB hotspots.  The Council will use 
this information to target resources; for example by setting up or attending a 
working group to deal with individual and / or location-based issues and 
address community concerns.   

 

 Providing regular updates to communities about actions taken to tackle anti-
social behaviour. In particular the Council will publicise, where permitted, 
enforcement actions such as Anti-Social Behaviour Orders, Anti-Social 
Behaviour Injunctions and Closure Orders. 
 

Page 15



 Providing residents with a swift and simple means of complaining, directly to 
the Community Safety Partnership, if effective action is not taken by local 
agencies through existing channels, to tackle issues of anti-social behaviour.  
 

 Providing support and assistance to help victims and witnesses of anti-social 
behaviour, having particular regard for those identified as being vulnerable. 
Where appropriate the Council will make referrals for support to victims, 
witnesses and perpetrators of ASB. 
 

 Taking complaints of anti-social behaviour seriously; recording and 
investigating them all, providing updates to all involved parties. In all reported 
cases a threshold assessment will be made based upon both the necessity 
and proportionality of any proposed intervention.   

 

 Whilst addressing community concerns, the Council will work with partner 
agencies to access appropriate support to help perpetrators address their 
behaviour, and to support those affected by unacceptable behaviour, leading 
to the best possible outcome for all.  

7. The Council’s approach to dealing with ASB  
 
Charnwood Borough Council adopts an incremental approach when dealing with 
ASB.  The purpose of the incremental approach is to manage ASB in a consistent 
and proportionate manner.  The incremental approach is summarised at Appendix 2.     
 
Action will be decided based on the circumstances of each case and will be 
proportionate to the behaviour exhibited, taking into account any vulnerabilities.     
 
The Council will aim to resolve the majority of ASB cases through non-legal means, 
and may use a range of early intervention tools and techniques to prevent ASB from 
escalating and to resolve cases quickly.   
 
Some of the options available to the Council when dealing with ASB include, but are 
not limited to, the following:      
 

 
Non-Legal Stage 

 Advice - verbal and written 

 Warnings - verbal and written 

 Community Protection Warning Letters 

 Acceptable behaviour contracts 

 Good neighbour agreements 

 Parenting contracts/agreements 

 Mediation 
 
Legal Stage  

 Civil Injunctions 

 Community Protection Notice 

Page 16



 Closure Order 

 Criminal Behaviour Order 

 Parenting contracts and parenting order 

 Possession proceedings and eviction (for Charnwood Borough Council 
Tenants) 

 Public Spaces Protection Order  

 Demoted tenancy (for Charnwood Borough Council Tenants) 

 Noise Abatement Notice 

 Prosecution 

 Seizure of items or equipment 
  

 

 
In certain circumstances, another agency may be better placed to deal with the 
behaviour.  Examples may include (but are not limited to) where there is a criminal 
element and the Police would be best placed to lead. The Council will support our 
partners in their investigation and action in these instances.  
 
Criminal behaviour, damage and vandalism cases may be referred to the Police.  
Where the perpetrator is known, the Council may pursue the costs of repair to 
Council owned properties and buildings through legal action if necessary.   
This Policy commits the Council to dealing with ASB in the Borough of Charnwood in 
a way that will always be fair and, in all important respects, consistent across cases 
of a similar kind. However, each ASB case the Council deals with is likely to be 
unique in some or other aspect and the Council therefore reserves the right where 
appropriate and proportionate to do so to take immediate legal action, incuding (bot 
not limited to) cases of assault against staff or contractors. 
   
In cases where complainants will not or cannot provide relevant details, for example, 
details of perpetrators, evidence, or where complaints are anonymous, this is likely 
to limit the Council’s ability to respond effectively.  Cases will be closed where there 
is insufficient evidence on which to base further action.   
 
Investigations may require (for example) discussions with other agencies, such as 
Leicestershire Police, in order to try to identify perpetrators.  

8.  Reporting ASB, and Support for Complainants/Victims, and Witnesses   
 
The Council will provide a variety of methods for people to report incidents of ASB 
and hate related incidents.  This includes: 
 

 By telephone via the Council’s Contact Centre 

 In person 

 Email or letter 

 On-line form 
 
The contact details for the Council’s ASB services can be found at Appendix 1.   
 

Page 17



The Council will respond to reports of ASB in line with the timescales detailed in its 
procedures.    
 
The Council will assess victim and overall case risk throughout the life of a case.  
The Council will consider factors including (but not limited to) the threat of or actual 
violence, whether the case is hate related, vulnerability, repeat victimisation, mental 
health, disability, and substance misuse.  The Council will consider the context of the 
case and the impact of the behaviour on victims and communities. 
 
The Council will take appropriate action to mitigate risk.  The Council may refer 
victims to specialist victim support services where appropriate.  If the 
complainant/victim/witness is a Charnwood Borough Council tenant where 
appropriate, the Council may provide tenancy related support through the in-house 
Tenancy Support Team. Where appropriate the Council may refer victims to support 
agencies including (but not limited to) Supporting Leicestershire Families, The Bridge 
Housing Services, Social Services, drug and alcohol, and mental health services. 
 
Where the Council’s witnesses attend court, the Council will endeavour to 
accompany them, and where appropriate the Council will liaise with the courts to 
minimise any distress and associated risks.  The Council will cover any reasonable 
expenses incurred by its witnesses attending court.   
 
Where appropriate the Council will provide additional security to residents 
experiencing ASB and/or a hate related incident/s. This may be subject to 
assessment and recommendation by a Police Crime Prevention Officer or 
equivalent.   
 
The Council will remove offensive hate graffiti within 24 hours of receiving the report. 

9.  Support for Vulnerable Perpetrators of ASB    
 
Whilst the needs of victims and witnesses come first, the Council will seek to identify 
perpetrator vulnerabilities and needs.  The Council may work in partnership with 
specialist external agencies to achieve this.  
 
The Council recognises that factors including mental health and substance misuse 
may be linked to the ASB. Perpetrators may be referred to an appropriate support 
agency, statutory agency (e.g. Social services or Health), or support provided by the 
in-house Tenancy Support Team (the support from the in-house Tenancy Support 
Team is only available to Charnwood Borough Council tenants). 
 
The Council will use its Alternative Incremental Process to identify and recognise the 
support needs of young people with developmental difficulties, including, but not 
limited to autism.  The Council will adapt its approach in response to the needs of 
these young people. 
 
The Council will take enforcement action where perpetrators fail to engage with 
support services and/or where behaviour does not improve to an acceptable level.   
 

Page 18



 
 
10.  Training and powers for Council officers responsible for dealing with ASB   
 
Officers directly involved in dealing with ASB will be provided with training on 
policies, procedures, and legislation, as appropriate to their role. 
 
Council officers undertaking enforcement activity will be duly authorised under the 
Council’s scheme of delegation.   
 
 
11.    Complaints and the Community Trigger  
 
The Council aims to provide an efficient and good quality ASB service to all its 
customers, but on some occasions people may be dissatisfied.   
 
The Council has a complaints procedure which should be the first point of call for 
people that are dissatisfied with the service they receive.  More information about the 
Council’s complaints procedure can be found on the Council’s website. 
 
At any time, a person can refer a complaint to their local Councillor. 
 
Community Trigger 
 
Introduced through the ASB, Crime and Policing Act 2014, the Community Trigger is 
a process that gives victims and communities the right to request a review of actions 
taken, where they believe an ongoing problem has not been adequately addressed.  
 
The Community Trigger is not a first port-of-call; it is only to be used if the 
complainant believes that there has been a failure to respond adequately to the 
complaint.  Applications can and will be rejected if they are thought to be prejudicial, 
discriminatory, malicious, unreasonable, vexatious or frivolous.  
 
The Community Trigger can be used in the following situations: 
  

 If an individual has complained to the Council, Police or a Registered Housing 
Provider about three separate incidents of ASB in the last six months. 

 

 If three individuals in the local community have complained separately to the 
Council, Police or Registered Housing Provider in the last six months about 
the same incident of anti-social behaviour in the locality. 

 

 If an individual has been a victim of a single hate crime or incident in the last 
six months. 

 
For a Community Trigger to be considered the individual must have made a 
complaint within one calendar month of the incident occurring and must request the 
Trigger to be activated within six months of the date of that initial complaint. 
 

Page 19



Once an individual has asked for a Community Trigger to be activated, the Council’s 
Community Safety Manager will acknowledge the request within five working days.  
 
The Council’s Community Safety Manager will ask the agencies involved to provide 
details of the individual’s complaint and actions they have considered and taken to 
date. The manager and officers from partner agencies will look at this information 
and decide whether a Community Trigger should be activated.  If it does not meet 
the threshold the individual will be informed with an explanation on how the decision 
was reached.  If it does meet the threshold a meeting will take place between officers 
from the appropriate agencies and partners involved in the case to discuss the ASB 
and what actions have been considered and taken.  The group will review how the 
Partnership has responded and draft a report of its findings 
 
A response will be sent to the individual by the Council’s Community Safety 
Manager, explaining the action taken and also making recommendations for any 
further action that may be necessary for the Partnership to take to resolve the anti-
social behaviour. 
 
If the individual is not entirely satisfied with the response they receive they have the 
right to an appeal. In the event of an appeal, individuals should contact the Chair of 
the Community Safety Partnership, who will arrange a meeting of senior officers of 
the Partnership in order to discuss the case further. 
 
More information around the Community Trigger, including how to activate it can be 
found at Appendix 3. 

12.  Information Sharing and Confidentiality  
 
The Council complies with the requirements of data protection legislation in force 
and has a data protection policy which can be found on the Council’s website.   
 
The Council will share information in line with legislation between partners to adopt a 
multi-agency approach to tackling ASB; to identify vulnerability and reduce risk, 
threat and harm to individuals and communities.   
 
There may be circumstances where the Council cannot preserve confidentiality, 
even when the data subject has requested that we do so. Examples may include (but 
are not limited to) where a criminal offence has been committed, where someone is 
a risk to themselves or others or where safeguarding concerns have been identified. 
When Court proceedings are issued the information will be in the public domain and 
therefore confidentiality cannot be preserved.   

13.  Equality and Diversity  
 
The Council will treat all customers with fairness and respect. The Council has an 
ethical and legal duty to advance equality of opportunity and prevent discrimination. 
 
In relation to the landlord role, before taking legal action, the Council will undertake 
an Equality Act 2010 Pre-Action Checklist. This will ensure that discrimination does 

Page 20



not occur and that interventions are appropriate, necessary, in pursuit of a legitimate 
aim, risk is considered and appropriately managed and relevant support provided.  
The principals of the Equalities Act 2010 will be applied in all Council led action.   
 
All information about the Council’s services can be made available in a variety of 
formats, and translated in to relevant community languages on request. 
 
The Council has an easy read diary sheet which can be issued to people who are 
unable to complete the standard diary sheets and a Dictaphone can be provided if 
there are issues with reading and writing. 
 
The Council will comply with its Equality Strategy which is available at:   
 
https://www.charnwood.gov.uk/pages/plansandpolicies 

14.  Policy Development  
 
This policy will be reviewed every four years, or when there are significant changes 
in legislation or context. 
 
Significant changes in legislation affecting this policy (and therefore the Council’s 
response) will be adopted on a case by case basis where it is appropriate to do so 
(pending full review of this policy).   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 21



Appendix 1 - How to Report ASB / Service Contact Details  
 

 Reporting ASB as a home owner or privately renting tenant 
 
Where the victim / complainant own their property or are privately renting, ASB can 
be reported to the Council’s Community Safety Team. 
 
Telephone:  01509 634533 
Email:  Community.safety@charnwood.gov.uk 
Online: 
 
https://www.charnwood.gov.uk/pages/reporting_asb_as_a_home_owner_or_privatel
y_renting_tenant 
 
 

 Reporting ASB as a Council tenant or about a Council tenant 
 
Where the victim / complainant is a Council tenant or the complaint is about a 
Council tenant, ASB can be reported to the Council’s Landlord Service. 
 
Telephone:  01509 634666 
Email:  contactcentre@charnwood.gov.uk 
Online:  
 
https://www.charnwood.gov.uk/pages/reporting_asb_as_a_council_tenant_or_about
_a_council_tenant 
 
 

 Reporting environmental ASB to the Street Management Team and 
Environmental Protection Team 

 
Telephone:  01509 634636 
Email:  env.health@charnwood.gov.uk 
Online:  https://www.charnwood.gov.uk/pages/noisenuisance 

 Reporting ASB in relation to high hedges to the Planning Enforcement 

Team 

 
Telephone:  01509 634570 
Email:  development.control@charnwood.gov.uk 
Online:  https://www.charnwood.gov.uk/pages/highhedgescomplaints 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 22



Appendix 2 - Summary of the Incremental Approach 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
N.B - A person can enter the incremental approach at any stage.  The action taken 

will be decided based on the circumstances of each case.  The actions listed at this 
appendix item are not intended to represent an exhaustive list.  

N
o

n
-l

e
g

a
l 

S
ta

g
e
 

L
e

g
a

l 
S

ta
g

e
 

Advice - Letter/Verbal 
Issued to highlight incidents of ASB 

which have raised concern 
 

Warning Letter 
Issued to highlight a person’s 

ongoing or more serious 
involvement in ASB and request for 

this behaviour to stop. 
 

Acceptable Behaviour Contract 
Issued to address a person’s ASB 

and to support them in stopping this 
behaviour. 

 

Civil Injunction 
A civil remedy intended to 
stop or prevent individuals 

engaging in ASB. 
 

Closure Notice/Order 
Designed to allow the 

Police and Local Authority 
to quickly close a 

premises being used, or 
likely to be used to 
commit nuisance  

or disorder. 
 

Criminal Behaviour Order  
Court order issued against a 
person involved in persistent 

ASB to protect the public from 
harassment, alarm or distress. 
 

Other possible sanctions 
include: 

 

 Community Protection Notice 

 Demoted tenancies 

 Possession Order 

 Injunction against unlawful 
use of premises 

 Exclusion Order and power 
to arrest 

Page 23



Appendix 3 - Community Trigger Activation 

 
In order to activate the Community Trigger a completed community trigger form is 
required.  The online activation from, along with more information about the process, 
can be found at:   
  
https://www.charnwood.gov.uk/pages/community_trigger_process 
 
Alternatively a paper copy can be downloaded via the same web address, 
completed, and posted to the following address: 
 
Community Safety Manager  
Charnwood Borough Council  
Council Offices  
Southfields Road  
Loughborough  
LE11 2TX 

 
 
 

 

 

Page 24



HOUSING MANAGEMENT ADVISORY BOARD – 11TH NOVEMBER 2020 
 

Report of the Head of Landlord Services 
 

ITEM 6 VOIDS UPDATE  
 

Purpose of Report  
 
To provide an update on the position in respect of voids. 
 
Recommendation  
 
The Board is asked to note and comment on the update. 
 
Background  
 
Works are undertaken to void properties to enable them to be re-let. The new Void 
Lettable Standard, which is currently being implemented, can be found at Appendix 1.  
 
Void categories  
 
Void repair works can broadly be split in to two categories; major and standard.  
 
The Council use Housemark to benchmark performance across the service and use 
their definitions to define the difference between major and standard works.  
 
The definitions for major works include those that have prevented the re-letting of the 
property because of their scale and extent.  
 
In summary, major repair works include:  
 

• Structural repairs  

• Site works around the dwelling  

• Services installations  

• Consequential and other works  

• Any works that significantly improve the dwellings (i.e. capitalised repairs)  

• Asbestos removal - Notifiable asbestos works should be counted as major 
works. Non-notifiable asbestos works should be counted as standard void 
works. 

  
Delivery of Voids Works  
 
Void works are undertaken by the Council’s directly employed in-house Voids team or 
by the Council’s capital works contractor, Fortem Solutions Ltd.  Works are outsourced 
to Fortem where there is insufficient capacity available in-house.  
 
Current Voids 
 

Page 25

Agenda Item 6



At 25/10/20 the Council had 236 void properties; the category, quantity and average 
number of days void are set out in the table below, along with the loss of rental income 
associated with the period the properties have not been let. 
 

SUMMARY - GENERAL NEEDS / SHELTERED 

  Nos 
Days 
void  

Average 
days void 

Rent loss in 
previous 

years 
£  

Rent loss in 
current year 

£ 

Cumulative 
rent loss 

£ 

General 
needs 

119 15,425 130 58,086 130,611 
 

188,696.92  

Sheltered 117 166,631 1,424 £1,724,561.64 250,347.94 
 

1,974,909.58 
  

TOTAL 236 182,056 771 1,782,647.79 380,959 
 

£2,163,606.50  
 
Void rent loss is high.  This is in part due to bedsits in sheltered accommodation not 
meeting the aspirations of many prospective tenants.  Bedsits account for 95 of the 
117 vacant sheltered properties.  A review of sheltered accommodation is in progress.  
 
 
Void Performance  
 
Performance data can be found at Appendix 2. 
 

• As a consequence of the national lockdown in March 20, less repairs were 
undertaken in tenanted properties.  In-house repairs operatives were therefore 
moved on to void works.  Initially this had the effect of increasing void times as 
a backlog of voids was cleared in April and May leading to more properties 
being returned for letting that had been void for longer. 
 

• The voids team is currently working differently in order to comply with social 
distancing requirements.  Officers are generally not working together in rooms 
/ properties where reasonably practicable.  Performance is therefore still behind 
that of last year, although is improving as the year progresses. 

 

• Lettings performance was impacted by the freeze in activity mandated by the 
national lockdown earlier in the year.  Along with sheltered accommodation, this 
is a key driver for the increase in the overall void re-let time and void loss and 
reflects the experience of other social landlords across the country.       

 
 
Improving voids performance  
 
The Voids Working Groups continue to meet regularly to discuss and improve 
processes and individual cases.  
 
  

Page 26



Officer to contact:  
 
Peter Oliver  
Head of Landlord Services  
Peter.oliver@charnwood.gov.uk  
01509 634952  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Page 27



Appendix 1 - New Void Lettable Standard 
 

Criteria  

Yes - No 
- N/A 

Pass 
Criteria  

Charnwood Standard      

Is the kitchen less than 20 years old, of adequate space 
and layout, and does it have >1 year remaining life    

Y 

Is the bathroom and separate WC (latter only if present) 
less than 30 years old and does it have >1 year 
remaining life    

Y 

Is the level access shower (if present) less than 15 years 
old and does it have >1 year remaining life    

Y / N/A 

Are the UPVC or composite doors less than 25 years old 
and does it have >1 year remaining life    

Y 

Is the boiler less than 15 years old   Y 

Is the full central heating pipework, radiators and electric 
storage radiators less than 30 years old   

Y 

Does the property have a valid EPC and a minimum SAP 
rating of 50  

Y / Not 
Feasible  

Y / Not 
Feasible  

      

Compliance      

Has an asbestos survey been carried out (N.B. There 
must be a survey in place before work starts)  

  

Y 

Have all medium and high risk, and damaged asbestos 
containing materials been removed  

  

Y 

Is a satisfactory electrical safety certificate present and 
available for the sign up pack    

Y 

Is a satisfactory Landlord Gas Safety Certificate present 
and available for the sign up pack   

Y 

Is a smoke detector fitted and has it been tested    Y 

Is a heat detector fitted and has it been tested    Y 

Is a CO detector fitted and has it been tested    Y 

Have the shower heads been replaced    Y 

If there is a header tank present, is it insulated, is there a 
lid on it, and is it clean and bylaw 30 compliant   

Y / N/A  

If the property has been empty for 5 weeks or more has 
it been chlorinated    

Y / N/A  

Have all pipework deadlegs been removed    Y / N/A 

Are all necessary fire doors present, functioning, in good 
repair, correctly fitted, and with all strips, seals, and door 
closing devices fitted  

  

Y  

Health and Safety  
  

  

Is loft insulation sufficient    Y / N/A 

Page 28



If the property has external wall insulation, render or 
cladding is it in good condition  

  

Y 

Are all parts of the property integrated into the main 
fabric of the building  

  

Y 

Is the property free of any lead in the property that is 
likely to cause a hazard to health   

  

Y 

Is the property free of any threats to health from 
chemicals used to treat timber and mould growth 

  

Y 

Is the property free of unguarded drops   Y 

Is the property free of any visible signs of structural 
movement or damage   

  

Y 

Are internal spaces adequate, meeting standards and fit 
for modern day living 

  

Y 

Is the property wind and watertight    Y 

Is the property free of signs of roof leaks or leaking 
guttering 

  

Y 

Is the property free of signs of damp    Y 

Is there adequate ventilation in each room    Y 

Is the property free of pests e.g. fleas, mice, rats and 
other vermin   

  

Y 

Has all rubbish, items, and hazardous materials been 
removed from all property areas including sheds, loft 
spaces, and gardens. 

  Y 

Have all sharps been removed from the property, 
including from behind radiators and on top of cupboards.   Y 

Are rails, guards and balustrades in place, in good 
condition, and adequate.  

  

Y 

      

Finishing and Decoration      

Is the property free of redundant cables, pipework, 
carpet grips, shelving, nails and holes in the wall etc.   

  

Y 

Has all graffiti been removed or painted over   Y 

Are all surfaces (e.g. walls and ceilings) in good 
condition, free of heavy tobacco stains, decorated to an 
acceptable standard, or ready to decorate.   

  

Y 

Is the property clean throughout    Y 

Amount of decoration grant Insert £ 
Value  

Insert £ 
Value  

      

Floors      

Are all floors safe and level and free of hazards e.g. 
holes, trip hazards  

  Y 

Are all floors tiles sound, unbroken and clean   Y 

Page 29



Are all timber floors sound and in a cleanable condition.   Y 

      

Walls and Ceilings      

Are all wall and ceiling finishes (plaster) sound with no 
loose or flaking material.   Y 

Are all the textured ceilings in sound condition   Y 

Are all polystyrene tiles removed throughout and finishes 
made good.   Y 

Has all mould growth been washed down and treated 
with an appropriate anti-fungicidal solution.   Y 

      

Windows and External Entrance Doors      

Have all windows been checked, and are they 
operational and secure with no broken glass. 

  

Y 

Have all existing external door locks been replaced with 
recycled locks and a minimum of two keys available for 
the inbound tenant 

  

Y 

Are all exterior doors sound, operational and secure (see 
24 if fire doors are needed or present) 

  

Y 

Are all glass panels safe and free from damage, with 
safety glass present where appropriate  

  

Y 

      

Internal Joinery, Fixtures and Fittings      

Are all interior doors fully operational with no damage.   Y 

Are stair handrails, banisters, and balustrades sound and 
safe 

  

Y 

      

Kitchen Units      

Are all work surfaces sound and cleanable with no 
damage 

  

Y 

Is all sealant clean, continuous, intact and fit for purpose.   

Y 

Are kitchen sinks clean, leak free and complete with plug 
and chain. 

  

Y 

Is there adequate space for a cooker, fridge and washing 
machine including space for washing machine taps and 
waste connections, and adequate work surfaces, and is 
the layout appropriate  

  

Y 

      

Bathrooms / Water Closets     

Are WC pans, wash hand basins and baths clean    Y 

Have plugs and / or chains been replaced at baths, wash 
hand basins and sinks. 

  

Y 

Are toilet seats new or in good clean condition.   Y 

Page 30



      

Tiling and Splashbacks      

Are all tiled surfaces clean with no broken or chipped 
tiles. 

  

Y 

      

Plumbing and Heating Systems      

Are thermostatic Radiator Valves and/or Room 
Thermostats all present   Y 

Is there a programmable Heating system in place    Y 

If electric heating was present, has it been changed to 
gas (where possible)  

  

Y / N/A 

Are all systems and overflow pipes leak free with no 
drips  

  
Y 

Have all taps been tested and are they functioning 
correctly and not dripping 

  

Y 

Have all Cisterns been tested for operation, and 
operational having been repaired and renewed as 
required 

  

Y 

Is all loose pipework securely clipped in place   Y 

Are all stop taps closed and hot water shut off, with 
valves appropriately located, operating correctly, and 
information available for the new tenant sign up pack. 

  

Y 

Have all solid fuel appliances been removed    Y  

Have all gas fires been removed    Y  

      

Garden External Areas      

Have hedges been cut down to 6ft or below and is the 
grass no taller than 1ft high.   Y N/A 

Is all external paving safe and level and free of hazards 
(e.g. trip hazards, holes, significant defects) and in place 
to ensure as far as reasonably practicable safe entry and 
exit of the dwelling through recognised routes e.g. front, 
rear doors and side entries etc. 

  

Y 

    
  

Roof Condition      

Does the condition of the roof indicate that it will likely 
need replacing in the next 5 years  

Y/N 

Not a pass 
criteria - 

assessment 
only 

    
  

Adaptations      

Page 31



List adaptations present  

Drop 
down list 
to be 
inserted - 
list 
below.   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 32



Appendix 2 - Void Performance Data  
 

 
 

 

P
age 33



 
 

 

P
age 34



 

 
 

P
age 35



 P
age 36



HOUSING MANAGEMENT ADVISORY BOARD – 11TH NOVEMBER 2020  
 

Report of the Head of Landlord Services 
 

ITEM   7 DISABLED ADAPTATIONS UPDATE  
 

Purpose of Report  
 
To:  
 

• provide an update on the position in respect of major adaptations 

• seek the Boards’ endorsement of an amendment to the policy  

• propose a pilot scheme to support tenants needing adaptations to move to 
alternative accommodation which better meets their needs.  

 
Recommendation  
 
The Board is asked to note the update, and comment on the proposed amendment to 
the policy, and pilot scheme set out below.  
 
Background  
 
The policy for disabled adaptations can be found at appendix 1.  
 
Performance  
 
The current average waiting time for major adaptation works (excluding stairlifts) is 
226 days. 
 
The average waiting times for completed works are set out in the table below. 
 

 
Year 

 
Completed Works 

 

 Average waiting time for 
works - average number 
of days from receipt of 
Occupational Therapist 
recommendation to 
completion of works. 
 

Average time of works at 
the home from start to 
completion  

 
2018/19 

 

 
199 

 
40 

 
2019/20 

 

 
157 

 
24 

 
2020/21 

 

 
420 

 
21 

Page 37

Agenda Item 7



 
Performance improved in 2019/20, however Covid-19 has caused delays in 2020.  The 
level of work taking place in tenants’ homes is now increasing.  It is expected the 
current average waiting time in 2020/21 will reduce over the remainder of the year.  
The existing data is based on two completions.  
 
Proposed Policy Amendment  
 

 
Proposed amendment: 

 

 
Reason why 

 

 
 
Adaptations involving the installation 
of a level-access shower at a first 
floor (or above), where there is no 
existing lift, and whether the property 
is under-occupied by two or more 
bedrooms may not be considered 
reasonable or practicable to 
undertake;   
 

 
Under occupation alone is unlikely to be 
a reasonable basis for refusal of 
adaptation.  
 
Consideration around under occupation 
of the property is present elsewhere in 
the policy, under Property 
Considerations: 
 
The current and likely future under or 
over occupancy of the property;  
 
 
 

 
Outline of Proposed Pilot Scheme to Support Tenants to Move to Alternative 
Accommodation which Better Meets their Needs  
 
In some instances, adaptations at the tenant’s property may not be deemed 
reasonable of practicable to undertake, or the cost of adaptation may be high.   
 
There may be properties in the Council’s stock which better meet the needs of the 
tenant / their household.  
 
In these instances, where the tenant is already living in the Councils stock, and a 
suitable alternative property is available, it is proposed that support is offered to 
tenants to move to the new property. 
 
This approach needs to be handled with considerable care and sensitivity. The needs 
and wishes of the disabled person, their carers and family will be considered to ensure 
that the outcome does not create difficulties, for example, with schooling and potential 
interruption of support networks.  Where the existing property may reasonably and 
practicably be adapted, the offer will be presented as an alternative option, rather than 
the only option.   
 
The assistance offered will be like that offered under the Council’s existing decant 
procedure i.e. the Tenancy and Estate Management Officer will arrange (as 
appropriate): 

Page 38



 
a) Removals to new address 
b) Telephone connection 
c) Aerial connection 
d) Connection of appliances 
e) Re-direction of mail 
f) Lifting and relaying of carpets or installation of new floor coverings 
g) Other costs may be considered including travel costs 

 
Decoration of the property offered may also be offered.  
 
Any alternative offer of accommodation will be provisional and in accordance with the 
Council’s Allocations Policy, and subject to:  
 

a) A current recommendation for adaptation having been received from an 
occupational therapist within the last six months. 

b) The cost of the adaptation must be significantly higher than the likely cost of the 
move to the Council / or the adaptation is deemed not reasonable or practical 
to undertake. 

c) The Adaptations Review Panel consider the move will support the best use of 
the Council’s housing stock and finances.  

 
The assistance as detailed above will be offered at the discretion of the Chair of the 
adaptations review panel.      
 
Provisional offers of suitable properties will be made on a time limited basis to reduce 
the likelihood of rental income loss through holding a property empty.  
 
If the tenant qualifies for a payment under the Council’s Assisted Transfer Policy, then 
the costs incurred by the Council in arranging the move would be deducted, along with 
any other sums due under the Policy i.e. rent arrears, recharges for damage etc.    
 
Officer to contact:  
 
Peter Oliver  
Head of Landlord Services  
Peter.oliver@charnwood.gov.uk  
01509 634952  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Page 39



 
Appendix 1 
 

 

 
 
 
 

Charnwood Borough Council 
 
 
 

Policy for Funding Council Housing  
Adaptations through the Housing Revenue Account  

 
2019-2024 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Version 3.2 
Updated October 2020 

  

 

Page 40



 
1. Introduction 
 
1.1 This policy will ensure that the Council’s Landlord Service provides an 

adaptations service that meets the needs of disabled people, accords with the 
social model of disability, and fulfils the Council’s legal requirements.     

 
 Adaptations to council homes are funded through the council’s housing 

revenue account.  The best use of limited HRA finance and housing stock is 
therefore a key consideration and the policy sets out how the Council will 
make decisions on the funding of adaptations.   

 
 The budget for adaptations is determined on an annual basis and funds the 

following works: 
 

▪ Minor adaptations 
▪ Major adaptations 
▪ Stair lifts 

 
1.2 The purpose of an adaptation is to modify the home environment in order to 

restore or enable independent living, privacy, confidence and dignity for 
tenants and their families. 

 
1.3 The council’s landlord service works closely with its partners in the provision 

of adaptations.  Occupational therapists (OTs) and Housing support co-
ordinators1 carry out assessments of needs in tenants’ homes. Leicestershire 
County Council (LCC) has statutory responsibility for OT assessments and 
performs this service for the council’s tenants.   

 
1.4 Assessment for adaptations will take into account the needs of individuals and 

their carers/households. 
  
1.5 This policy will be supported by clear operating procedures, standard forms 

and letters in order to achieve the objectives set out in section 2. 
 
 
2.  Objectives of the policy 
 
 The objectives of this policy are to: 

 

• support tenants and any permanent members of their households to 
live comfortably, safely and independently at home; 

 

• make best use of the council’s housing stock and budgets; 
 

• provide an accessible and cost effective adaptations service based on 
a fair and objective assessment of individual needs on a case by case 
basis; 

 
1 Roles undertaking the statutory assessment of needs function will be referred to as OT 

Page 41



 

• ensure that as far as reasonably practicable tenants are aware of the 
options available to maintain and sustain independent living; 

 

• give priority to mandatory adaptations work, works within the dwelling 
and those that support access and egress; 

 

• support speed of decision making and minimise waiting times for 
adaptations work to be carried out; 

 

• ensure that as far as reasonably practicable the council’s housing stock 
is future proofed; 

 

• Ensure that appropriate technical consideration is given to 
recommendations, and that the need to comply with any statutory 
obligations in respect of building control and other relevant legislation is 
identified. 

 
 
3.  Scope of the policy 
 
3.1 This policy applies to all current tenants of council-owned dwellings, and 
 prospective tenants of the council with a reasonable prospect of an offer of 
 accommodation.   
 
3.2 Secure tenants have the legal right to request permission to undertake 
 alterations and improvements to their homes, including home adaptations.  
 Written permission from the council must be obtained before improvements 
 are undertaken.  Permission to undertake alterations and improvements is not 
 covered by this policy.  
 
3.3 In practice2, there are two categories of adaptations work: minor and major. 
 This policy covers both minor and major adaptations work. 
 
 
4. Policy statement 
 
4.1 Minor adaptations 
 

These are generally works that costs below £500, and will be subject to an 
assessment and report from the OT at LCC. 

 
 Examples of minor adaptations are: 
 

• handrails at the front and/or rear entrance of the property; 

 
2 The framework for mandatory adaptation works is set out in  section 23(1) of the 1996 Act, subsequently 

been added to by The Disabled Facilities Grants (Maximum Amounts and Additional Purposes)(England)Order 
2008 as allowed for by section 23(1)(l) of the Act.   
 

Page 42



 

• an additional stair rail; 
 

• grab rails; 
 

• half steps; 
 

• lever taps; 
 

• key safes; 
 

• fillet ramps (small internal timber ramp) 
 
 

4.2 Major adaptations 

Adaptations costing £500 and over are generally classed as major 
adaptations, require a report from an OT at LCC with a recommendation and 
a decision from the  Council. Examples of major adaptations work are: 

 

• level-access showers or other modifications to the bathroom; 
 

• over-the-bath showers; 
 

• major structural conversions; 
 

• re-modelling of rooms and layout of the property; 
 

• stair lifts/vertical or through-floor lifts and platform lifts; 
 

• concrete ramps for wheelchair use; 
 

• shower screens; 
 

• alterations to kitchen surfaces (i.e. lowering surfaces for wheelchair 
users); 

 

• installing patio doors in flats; 
 

• the widening of paths around the property; 
 

• widening doors. 
 
 

4.3 Advice, information and support 
 
4.3.1 Advice, information and support will be provided where tenants are 
 considering what options are possible in relation to their individual 
 circumstances. 

Page 43



 
4.3.2 Where tenants request adaptations work, they will be asked to contact LCC 
 for an initial assessment, which is usually undertaken by phone.  
 
 
4.4 Eligibility 
 

Any council tenant can apply for adaptations to their home either in person or 
via a member of their family.  Generally only recommendations from LCC will 
be considered. The adaptation requested must meet the needs of the tenant 
or another permanent member of the household. 

 
 
4.5 Assessment 
 
4.5.1 The OT at LCC will contact the tenant to make arrangements to assess their 

requirements. This will be done in the tenant’s home. Dependent Upon the 
nature of the  works, if a joint visit is required by Repairs and Investment staff, 
this will be arranged. 

 
4.5.2 Following the home visit, the OT will send an assessment report to the 
 Council.  This information will include a recommendation as to the works and 
 materials required and an indication on the priority (i.e. urgent, ASAP, or 
 standard). 
 
4.5.3 The repairs and investment staff will be the key contact for tenants from this 
 point onward. 
 
 
4.6 Decision-making process 
 
4.6.1 Minor adaptations work of a standard nature will generally be approved and 
 ordered. Tenants successful in their application will be dealt with in date order 
 within the priority recommended by the OT. Requests for minor adaptations of 
 a non-standard nature would generally require a survey by a surveyor from 
 the council to assess feasibility for the works. 
 
4.6.2 Major adaptations work of a standard nature such as level-access showers, 
 over-the-bath showers, stair lifts, and ramps will generally be approved and 
 ordered when they are received. 
  
4.6.3 Requests for major adaptations of a non-standard nature would generally 
 require a survey by a surveyor from the council to assess feasibility for the 
 works.  
 
4.6.4 Any decisions on major adaptations work, or where there is a case that 
 requires more in-depth consideration, including, but not limited to, those listed 
 below will be referred for consideration by the Adaptations Review Panel: 
 

• Major internal alterations/external alterations; 

Page 44



 

• Through-floor lifts; 
 

• Hard-standings and dropped kerbs;  
 

• Adaptations with an estimated cost in excess of £7,000; 
 

• Adaptations with a non-standard design or concept;  
 

• Adaptations at properties of non-standard construction, and / or where 
there are significant site complexities.  

 
4.6.5 Following the Panel’s consideration of the case, the decision to undertake the 
 adaption will be made by the officer with the appropriate level of delegated 
 authority.   
 
 
4.7  Maximum value of adaptation/s  
 
4.7.1 The Council will not authorise the use of HRA finance for works in excess of 
 £30,000 unless there are exceptional circumstances.  Generally, exceptional 
 circumstances will include where: 
 

• all possible alternative options have been fully explored and exhausted; 
 

• there are no suitable alternative properties within the Council’s stock; 
  

• it is reasonable and practicable to undertake the adaptations 
requested.            

 
The Council may not be able to fund adaptions due to financial constraints, and 
costs may therefore need to be spread across more than one annual budget.  
 
 
4.8 Considerations  
 
4.8.1 The council will consider whether it is reasonable and practicable to carry out 

the adaptations as recommended by the OT. 
 
4.8.2 When considering adaptation requests all potential options will be explored to 

meet the specific needs of the tenant (and their household), including a 
transfer to more suitable housing, particularly where this would prevent 
spending significant sums on major alterations to the existing home.   

 
4.8.3 While the circumstances of each case will be different in some aspects and 

will therefore have to be considered on the basis of individual need, the 
rationale for the decisions on major adaptations work will be based on the 
following considerations including, but not limited to: 

 
(a) Tenant/Tenancy considerations: 

Page 45



 

• The tenant’s views and preferences; 
 

• The property to be adapted must be the main residence of the 
person who will benefit from the adaptations and likely to remain 
so in the foreseeable future; 
 

• Adaptations should address the immediate and longer term 
needs of the disabled person; 
 

• The type of tenancy held by the tenant: non-secure, 
introductory, secure tenancy; 
 

• Whether there is an imminent risk of the tenancy ending i.e. 
through eviction or notice to quit; 

 

• Any pending right to buy, transfer, or mutual exchange 
application; 
 

• Whether the tenant has moved from a property that would have 
been more suitable for their needs compared to their current 
property, and they are deemed to have deliberately worsened 
their circumstances. 

 
(b) Property considerations: 

 

• The property type and its construction; 
 

• Properties of a non-standard construction type are generally not 
considered reasonable or practical for major structural 
adaptation works e.g. installation of a through-floor lift; 
 

• Where reasonable to do so, applicants may be offered a suitable 
alternative property that better meets their needs;     
 

• The current and likely future under or over occupancy of the 
property;  
 

• If the property is suitable for adaptation; 
 

• Properties with narrow doorways, halls, stairways and passages 
may make wheelchair use in and around the dwelling difficult; or 
with difficult or limited access e.g. steep flights of steps making 
access for wheelchair use difficult and therefore making 
continued or prospective occupation of the dwelling open to 
question; 
 

• If space in the current property is being used to its maximum 
benefit; 

Page 46



 

• If alterations can be made to the internal layout; 
 

• The number of living rooms on the ground floor of the property; 
 

• If the property has previously been adapted for the tenant and 
the amounts spent on the adaptations; 
 

• If any existing adaptations can be recycled; 
 

• Where the adaptation concerns a communal area, whether the 
adaptation presents a hazard to users of the building e.g. stair 
lift obstructing means of escape. 

 

• Conservation considerations and planning constraints may 
prevent certain types of adaptation being carried out.  

 
 (c) Other considerations 
 

• If the works are supported (or not) by the OT; 
 

• Whether there is a statutory obligation for the Council to 
undertake the works; 
 

• Where substantial work is recommended, the potential delays 
resulting from any planning and building regulations approvals 
and the design and completion of the works; 
 

• The consideration of all other housing options; 
 

• If there is another property that would be more suitable 
(rehousing option); 
 

• Would the tenant and household have to be decanted on a 
temporary basis for the works to be completed (and, if so, is 
there suitable housing for the tenant to move to during the 
period of the works)? 

 

• Full exploration of any viable alternatives; 
 

• The impact on other occupants of proposed works which will 
reduce or limit the existing facilities or amenities in the dwelling; 
 

• The budget available for adaptations work; 
 

• The cost of the works; 
 

Page 47



• Extensions are likely to cost in excess of £30,000, and therefore 
generally will not be considered reasonable or practical to 
undertake.  

 
 
4.9 Requests to Remove Adaptations  
  

Requests from tenants or their representatives that the Council remove 
adaptations will generally be refused.  

 
 
4.10 Post inspection of works 
 
 To ensure that adaptations work is carried out to the appropriate standards 
 and to the satisfaction of the tenant, we will carry out: 
 

• post inspections on 100% of major adaptations work; 
 

• aftercare contact to the tenant on completion of the major adaptations 
work; 
 

• follow-up contact by the customer liaison officer after four weeks from 
the completion of major works to check that there are no problems with 
the work. 

 
 

4.11 Appeals and Complaints Process 
 
4.11.1 Decisions on whether adaptations work is approved can be appealed. 

Appeals must be received within 90 days of the issue of the original decision.    
A review of the decision will be undertaken by a senior Council officer with no 
prior involvement in the case.  Only one appeal will generally be considered.   

 
4.11.2 Complaints will be deal with through the Council’s complaints process.  
  
 
5.  Timescales, performance monitoring, target setting and reporting 
 
5.1 Tenants requesting adaptations will be notified of a decision as soon as is 
 reasonably practicable and no later than three months after the date of receipt 
 of the OT’s recommendation.   
 
5.2 An order with a suitable contractor for the approved works will be placed as 

soon as reasonably practicable after the decision is made, taking in to 
account the need to undertake designs and define the scope of work.   

 
5.3 We will monitor performance using the following performance indicators: 
 

• Average waiting time for a decision on an adaptation request (from 
receipt of recommendation); 

Page 48



 

• Average time to carry out minor adaptations (following the decision to 
proceed.); 
 

• Average waiting time for major adaptations (following order of works); 
 

• Average time to carry out minor adaptations (from receipt of 
recommendation); 
 

• Average waiting time for major adaptations (from receipt of 
recommendation).  

 
5.4 Annual targets will be set on a team and individual basis. 
 
5.5 We will compare our performance with that of other organisations, and we will 
 seek to identify and implement good practice. 
 
5.6 Equalities data will be captured for applications that are refused.   
 
 
6.  Multi-agency and team working 
 

We will strive to foster and nurture excellent relationships with such teams 
and organisations that include (but are not limited to): 

 

• OTs; 
 

• Adult and Children’s Social Care; 
 

• Building control and planning; 
 

• External support agencies such as The Bridge and the Citizens’ Advice 
Bureau. 

 
 
7.  Review of the policy 
 
 This policy will be reviewed every four years or at an earlier period if there are 
 legislative, regulatory or corporate policy changes. 
 
 
8.  Responsibility and accountability 
 

Responsibility and accountability for this policy lies with the Head of Landlord 
Services.     

 
 
9.  Other policies  
 

Page 49



 The following policies need to be taken into consideration in respect of this 
 policy: 
 

• Complaints policy; 
 

• Choice-based lettings housing allocations policy; 
 

• Equality strategy; 
  

• Housing asset management strategy; 
  

• Housing revenue account business plan; 
  

• Housing strategy; 
 

• Private sector grants policy.  
 
 
10. Training  
 
Appropriate training will be provided to officers delivering the adaptations service.  
 
 
 

Page 50



HOUSING MANAGEMENT ADVISORY BOARD – 11TH NOVEMBER 2020 

 

ITEM 8 HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT OUTTURN POSITION 2019/20 

 

1. The provisional Housing Revenue Account outturn for 2019/20 is a surplus of £171k 
compared with a budgeted surplus of £128k, an increase of £43k. This gives HRA 
general balances at the end of the year of £610k following a transfer of £174k to the 
HRA Financing Fund. This transfer gives the HRA Financing Fund a balance at the 
end of the year of £8,235k. The Council’s preferred minimum level of balances is £110 
per property. 

 
2. The HRA Balances at 31st March 2020, are overall £12,209k, the HRA made a 

contribution to the Major Repairs Reserve of £3,249k. This reserve has a balance at 
31 March 2020 of £3,364k compared with £3,926k at 31 March 2019. This balance is 
the unspent amount carried forward to 2020/21 after the 2019/20 capital financing 
entries. This reserve finances capital expenditure and the repayment of debt, in 
accordance with the HRA Business Plan.   

 
3. The Housing Financing Fund balance at 31 March 2020 was £8,235k. The HRA owes 

£79m in loans following the self-financing settlement in 2012 and, as well as paying 
the interest due, the principal amounts borrowed will either, in time, need to be 
refinanced or paid back. The first loan to be paid back following the self-financing 
settlement is in 2024. The money required to pay back the principal will be from HRA 
Reserves – principally those from the HRA Financing Fund.  The total HRA Balances 
at 31st March 2020 are £12,209k 

 
4. Supervision and Management (excluding recharges – Appendix One) £360k 

underspend (9.6%). This includes underspending on salaries of £126k rent Software 
£55k, Bank Charges £26k, Sheltered Accommodation furniture £23k External software 
development £22k, Printing £19k, Housing Strategy £14k   There’s been additional 
income in Lifeline charges of £13k, Legal income £13k and other reimbursements 
£13k. Other underspends include Electricity £13k, Cleaning £14k, and £22k in grants 
for underoccupied/assisted transfers. There was an overspend of £13k on equipment 
in sheltered accommodation. 

 
5. Repairs and Maintenance (excluding recharges – Appendix One) £369k underspend 

(5.9%) This includes underspending on salaries of £189K, and £212k on non-salaries 
£68k Fire Risk Assessments, Gas Servicing £77k and £59k, Asbestos Surveys and 
Gas Repairs £42k. These were offset by Door Entry overspend of £34k.  

 
6. Net Recharges to the HRA were £86k (7%) greater than the budget. These exclude 

Pension recharges totalling £556k which do not impact on the bottom-line of the HRA. 
The Depreciation of £3,249k was credited into the Major Repairs Reserve to and the 
capital programme. Revaluations were reversed out and do not affect the HRA outturn 
position. 

 
7. The 2019/20 rent income for dwellings was 1% lower than 2018/19 due to Government 

policy. Void loss was 2.6% against a budget of 2.2%. Dwelling Rent income was a 

Page 51

Agenda Item 8



£65k adverse variance (0.3%). Right to buy sales were budgeted at 40 sales, 
compared with 44 actual sales. An additional 21 properties were added into the HRA, 
through acquisition and the utilisation of 1-4-1 receipts. 

 
8. As at 31 March 2020 rent arrears were £1,078k compared with £965k at 31 March 

2019. Court costs were £107k at 31 March 2020 compared with £104k at 31 March 
2019. These are a combined increase of £116k. 

 
9. As a percentage of dwelling rents the total arrears including court costs is 5.63% 

compared with 5.05% in 2018/19. 
 

10. The amount of HRA debt written off in the year was £184k compared to £197k in 
2018/19. This includes rent and court costs write-offs totalling £132k in 2019/20 
compared with £148k in 2018/19. 

 
11. Rent arrears increased by £113k between the end of March 2019 and the end of March 

2020. Former tenant arrears reduced by £2k over the same period. Former tenant 
arrears cash collected over the year was £4k. Rent collection for the year (including 
arrears brought forward) was 96.29% compared with 96.75% at the end of the 
previous year. 

 
12. The numbers of tenants receiving universal credit (UC) continues to rise and during 

the year almost doubled to over a thousand at the end of March 2020. As expected, 
and in line with the experience of other landlords, rent arrears have increased although 
the average debt of a tenant receiving universal credit at the end of the year was 
almost unchanged compared to the same point the previous year.   UC is paid to the 
claimant as a single monthly payment in arrears.  It takes at least five weeks for the 
Department for Work and Pensions to assess a claim and for tenants to receive their 
first payment of the benefit.  A rent debt is often accrued as a result.  In some 
instances, on receipt of the benefit tenants do not pay the rent to the council. Advice 
and support is offered to all tenants moving to universal credit by the landlord services 
financial inclusion and tenancy support teams.  Where tenants have vulnerabilities 
and/or owe eight or more weeks’ rent our universal credit officer makes applications 
to the DWP to switch payment of the housing element of UC from the tenant to the 
council.  Rent recovery action is taken where necessary.  
 

13. Appendix Two details the controllable cost outturn for the HRA as at 31 March 2020. 
This shows the controllable budgets and actuals as they were presented within the 
monitoring reports during the year. The descriptions of Employee related expenditure 
include all employee related costs, not just salaries. Some costs such as insurance 
costs and business rates must be shown in Rents, Rates and Other Charges, within 
the Income and Expenditure account of the Statement of Accounts. 

 

14. The Capital Outturn is detailed in Appendix Three. Expenditure was £8,203k on a 
current budget of £9,094k – an underspend of £886k (9.7%). This amount has been 
carried forward into the 2020/21 budget. 
 

  

Page 52



Appendix One 

4

 

 

Page 53



Appendix Two

 

Page 54



Appendix Three 

 

 

 

 

Page 55



 

 

HOUSING MANAGEMENT ADVISORY BOARD – 11TH NOVEMBER 2020 
 

Report of the Head of Landlord Services 
 
 
ITEM   11 WORK PROGRAMME AND MEETING DATES 2020/21   
 
Purpose of the Report  
 
To enable the Board to agree its work programme.  The current work 
programme, appended, sets out the position following the last meeting of the 
Board on 9th September 2020 and subsequent discussion with the Head of 
Landlord Services and the Chair regarding items that require consideration by 
the Board. 
 
The Board is also asked to agree meeting dates for the remainder of 2020/21. 
 
Recommendations 
 
1. To agree that the Board’s work programme be updated in accordance with 

the decisions taken during consideration of this item and any further 
decisions taken during the course of the meeting. 

 
2. To agree the following dates for meetings of the Board during the 

remainder of the 2020/21 Council Year (all at 4.30pm): 
 

Wednesday, 13th January 2021; 
Wednesday, 24th March 2021; 
Wednesday, 12th May 2021.  

 
Reasons 
 
1. To ensure that the information contained within the work programme is up 

to date. 
 
2.  The Terms of Reference of the Board state that the Board will agree a 

programme of meetings for the forthcoming year annually, on the basis of 
meetings taking place every two months. 

 
  

Page 56

Agenda Item 11



 

 

 

HOUSING MANAGEMENT ADVISORY BOARD - WORK PROGRAMME 

MEETING DATE/ 

FREQUENCY 
ISSUE 

INFORMATION 

REQUIRED/ 

INVITEES/ 

OFFICERS 

NOTES 

SCHEDULED:    

Every meeting Work programme  
To review the Board’s work 

programme. 

Every meeting 

Questions from 

members of the 

Board  

 

Questions on matters within 

the remit of the Board (if any), 

for response at the meeting. 

 

Members will be asked in 

advance of the agenda being 

published for each meeting 

whether they have any such 

questions, for listing on the 

agenda. 

Every meeting  

Performance 

information  – 

questions  

 

See HMAB minute 14.4, 9th 

November 2016. 

To enable the Board to ask 

questions, if any, on the 

performance information 

pack* sent out with the 

agenda for the meeting. 

To be last item on agenda. 

November 2020 
Update on ASB 

Policy 

Head of 

Landlord 

Services 

  

November 2020 Update on Voids 

Head of 

Landlord 

Services 

Requested by the Board at 

its meeting on 15th January 

2020. 

November 2020 
Disabled 

Adaptations 

Head of 

Landlord 

Services 

Annual report. 

November 2020 

 

HRA Revenue 

and Capital 

Outturn (2019/20) 

(Update on HRA) 

Group 

Accountant (IA) 
Annual report. 

Page 57



 

 

MEETING DATE/ 

FREQUENCY 
ISSUE 

INFORMATION 

REQUIRED/ 

INVITEES/ 

OFFICERS 

NOTES 

November 2020 
Priorities for Next 

Financial Year 

Head of 

Landlord 

Services 

Annual Report. 

 

In 2020, this will be a brief 

verbal report. 

November 2020 

January 2021 
(rescheduled as Head 

of Service unable to 

attend Nov 2020 

meeting) 

Sheltered Housing 

Review Update 

Head of 

Strategic and 

Private Sector 

Housing 

Requested by Board at its 

meeting on 9th September 

2020. 

January 2021 Capital Plan 

Head of 

Landlord 

Services 

Annual report. 

January 2021 Budget 2021/22 

Head of 

Landlord 

Services 

Annual report. 

January 2021 

Fly Tipping in 

Communal 

Areas/on HRA 

Land 

Head of 

Landlord 

Services 

Requested by Board at its 

meeting on 9th September 

2020. 

January 2021 

Tenancy Policy 

and Tenancy 

Agreement 

Head of 

Landlord 

Services 

Rescheduled by the Board at 

its meeting on 9th September 

2020. 

January 2021 Pets Policy 

Head of 

Landlord 

Services 

Requested by the Board at 

its meeting on 9th September 

2020. 

 

First meeting of 

Council year 

 

Election of Chair 

and Vice-chair 
 Annual Item. 

TO BE 

SCHEDULED: 
   

To be scheduled 

HRA Asset 

Management 

Strategy and HRA 

Business Plan 

Head of 

Landlord 

Services 

 

To be scheduled Housing Strategy 

Head of 

Strategic and 

Private Sector 

Housing 

Added to work programme 

2nd April 2014. 

Page 58



 

 

 

Notes: 

1. All reports must include an explanatory list of any acronyms used. 
 

2. *Performance information pack will include (i) Decent Homes Contractor Performance; (ii) 
Landlord Services Performance; (iii) Compliance Performance (Fire Safety, etc.); (iv) Anti-
social Behaviour (relating to Council’s housing stock) Information and (v) Universal Credit 
Performance update. 

 

 

Page 59


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of the previous meeting
	5 Update on ASB Policy
	6 Update on Voids
	7 Disabled Adaptations
	8 HRA Revenue and Capital Outturn (2019/20) (Update on HRA)
	11 Work Programme and Meeting Dates 2020/21 Council Year

